
From: David Hohnstein
To: gord@northarrowminerals.com
Cc: Phyllis Beaulieu
Subject: New Water Licence Application - Torp Lake Project - North Arrow Minerals Inc.
Date: Wednesday, November 18, 2009 10:21:35 AM
Attachments: 090823 2BE-TOR---- Citizen comments-IMLE.pdf

090824 2BE-TOR---- NWB response to Citizen comments-OMLE.pdf
090903 2BE-TOR---- EC Comments-IMLE.pdf
090910 2BE-TOR---- CLEY comments-IMLE.pdf
090918 2BE-TOR---- DOE New Water License Appl Comments-IAAE.pdf
090918 2BE-TOR---- New Appl INAC Comments-ILAE.pdf

Gordon Clarke, V.P. Exploration
North Arrow Minerals Inc.
 
Good morning Gordon,
 
With respect to the new water licence application that was submitted in July with additional
information provided in August, the NWB is asking you to provide a response to the
comments on the application, submitted by INAC and Env. Can, received in September. 
The NWB has completed the review of the application file and the staff would like to
present their recommendation to the Board for approval of the Licence.  Prior to doing so,
additional information is being requested (response) to give the Board basis for further
decision. 
 
The main point of concern is the issue of secondary containment for fuel storage and what
North Arrow may be looking at in this regard.  As a bit of a background, there has to this
point, not been any licence conditions imposed on small exploration projects, research or
lodge activities with respect to providing secondary containment other than storing in an
isolated area, 31m from water and such that any spills would be contained within the low
lying area of the storage.  It was thought that these issues were generally covered under
any land use permit issued for the projects.  Both INAC (Water resources/inspection) and
EC have included recommendations in their responses for provision of containment. I’ve
attached all the comments received during the review period for your information and
reference.
 
The present thought is to request a revision to the SCP addressing the issue of 2ndary
containment, however, if containment is provided, there is still the concern with water that
would collect within the containment and the disposal of that (potentially contaminated)
water.  This would require conditions in the licence for monitoring through
sampling/analyses prior to any discharge of the water.  This may need to be addressed in
the Spill Plan as well.
 
In addition to the above request, I have also emailed INAC and EC (cc’d to yourself) for
clarification of their recommendation and the ramification of moving towards secondary
containment at all projects with fuel storage concerns.
 
I appreciate your thoughts on the above, if you have any questions please feel free to give
me a call at your convenience at (780) 443-4406 (MST).
 
Regards,
 

mailto:dts@nunavutwaterboard.org
mailto:gord@northarrowminerals.com
mailto:licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org



From: avativut nunavut
To: Phyllis Beaulieu
Subject: Re: 090817 2BE-TOR----, New Application North Arrow Minerals Inc. - Request for review and comments -


Kitikmeot Region
Date: Sunday, August 23, 2009 11:15:11 AM


Hello my comment on this is that on page 4, it indicates that low level flying will
occur only for supply and crew changes.  The company should be prepared to
commit to low level flying only when necessary because it disturbs wildlife.  Only
doing what you would do anyway doesn't really strike me as a "mitigation measure"
unless I'm missing something.  I can't understand from the application what it is or
where it is, I know they give a lat/long but there is no project description or map
and it is a bit confusing.  Are they inside the Kitikmeot land use plan?  Is it for
radioactive material or other minerals?


Thank you,


Alice Baker.


On Tue, Aug 18, 2009 at 11:41 AM, Phyllis Beaulieu
<licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org> wrote:


Please see attached, requesting review and comments – deadline is September 18,
2009


Regards,


 


Phyllis Beaulieu


Manager of Licensing


Nunavut Water Board


P.O. Box 119


Gjoa Haven, NU  X0B 1J0


Phone:  (867) 360-6338, Ext. 26


Fax:  (867) 360-6369


Email:  licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org


 



mailto:avativutnunavut@gmail.com

mailto:licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org

mailto:licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org

mailto:licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org






From: Phyllis Beaulieu
To: "avativut nunavut"
Subject: RE: 090817 2BE-TOR----, New Application North Arrow Minerals Inc. - Request for review and comments -


Kitikmeot Region
Date: Monday, August 24, 2009 3:19:00 PM


Good afternoon Ms. Baker – I have reviewed the submitted application and indications are that
low flying will only be done while coming in for landings during supply and crew changes.  The
regional map, property map and work area maps show the lats and longs of where the activity will
be focused.  There is a non-technical project description provided with the application which
explains what the project is.  It is within the Kitikmeot region, 245 km east of Kugluktuk.  If they use
the High Lake camp as indicated in the questionnaire, the coordinates are 67 22 42N and 110 50
30W.  The main focus of this exploration is prospecting, geological mapping, geophysical survey
and drilling with the main deposit being Lithium which is used to produce batteries.
 
I hope this answers your questions.  If I can be of further assistance, please contact our office.
Regards,
 


From: avativut nunavut [mailto:avativutnunavut@gmail.com] 
Sent: Sunday, August 23, 2009 11:15 AM
To: Phyllis Beaulieu
Subject: Re: 090817 2BE-TOR----, New Application North Arrow Minerals Inc. - Request for review and
comments - Kitikmeot Region
 
Hello my comment on this is that on page 4, it indicates that low level flying will occur only
for supply and crew changes.  The company should be prepared to commit to low level flying
only when necessary because it disturbs wildlife.  Only doing what you would do anyway
doesn't really strike me as a "mitigation measure" unless I'm missing something.  I can't
understand from the application what it is or where it is, I know they give a lat/long but there
is no project description or map and it is a bit confusing.  Are they inside the Kitikmeot land
use plan?  Is it for radioactive material or other minerals?


Thank you,


Alice Baker.


On Tue, Aug 18, 2009 at 11:41 AM, Phyllis Beaulieu <licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org>
wrote:


Please see attached, requesting review and comments – deadline is September 18, 2009


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
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 Environment Environnement 
Canada          Canada 


Environmental Protection Operations 
Qimugjuk Building 969   
P.O. Box 1870 
Iqaluit, NU     X0A 0H0 
Tel: (867) 975-4631 
Fax: (867) 975-4645 
 
September 3, 2009       Our file:   4704 004 047 
         NWB file: 2BE-TOR 
  
Phyllis Beaulieu 
Manager of Licensing 
Nunavut Water Board 
P.O. Box 119 
Gjoa Haven, NU   X0B 1J0 
Tel: (867) 360-6338 
Fax: (867) 360-6361                    Via email at: licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org 
  
      
Re: NWB 2BE-TOR- North Arrow Minerals Inc. – Torp Project- New Application- Type 


“B” Water License  
 
On behalf of Environment Canada (EC), I have reviewed the information submitted with the above-
mentioned application.  The following specialist advice has been provided pursuant to Environment 
Canada’s mandated responsibilities for the enforcement of the Canadian Environmental Protection 
Act, Section 36(3) of the Fisheries Act, the Migratory Birds Convention Act, and the Species at Risk 
Act. 
 
North Arrow proposes to conduct an exploration project to evaluate the potential for lithium-bearing 
pegmatites in the project area located approximately 245 km east of Kugluktuk.  Project activities 
will include airborne geophysics, prospecting, mapping, and helicopter supported diamond drilling 
for rock samples.  The project is proposed to occur from August 2009 to August 2014, with field 
operations expected to occur from March to October of each field season.  A crew of approximately 
16 people will be employed during project operations.  Project personnel will stay at the existing 
High Lake camp or may set up a 16 person camp at 67°19’ 03”N, - 109°39’ 07” W.  The camp 
would include five sleeping tents, cook tent, kitchen, office, core shack, outhouse, generator and a 
fuel cache. 
 
Comments and recommendations submitted for the project on August 5, 2009 in response to the 
NIRB Part 4 Screening would apply to this water license application (see attached).  
 
If there are any changes in the proposed project, EC should be notified, as further review may be 
necessary.  Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or comments with regards to the 
foregoing at (867) 975-4631 or by email at carrie.spavor@ec.gc.ca.  
 
Yours truly, 
 


Original signed by 
 
Carrie Spavor 
Environmental Assessment Coordinator 
 
c.c:  Carey Ogilvie (Head, Environmental Assessment-North, EPO, Yellowknife, NT) 
 Ron Bujold (Environmental Assessment Technician, EPO, Yellowknife, NT) 







 
 
 
Environmental Protection Operations 
Qimugjuk Building 969  P.O. Box 1870 
Iqaluit, NU     X0A 0H0 
Tel: (867) 975-4631 
Fax: (867) 975-4645 
 
August 5, 2009       Our file:   4704 004 047  
        NIRB file: 09EN059 
 
Amanda Hanson 
Technical Advisor 
Nunavut Impact Review Board 
P.O. Box 2379 
Cambridge Bay, NU    X0B 0C0 
        Via Email info@nirb.ca 


      
RE: NIRB 09EN059- Notice of Part 4 Screening for North Arrow mineral Inc.’s “Torp 


Lake” Project Proposal 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide input into the Nunavut Impact Review Board’s (NIRB) 
Part 4 screening decision for North Arrow Mineral Inc.’s (North Arrow) “Torp Lake” Project 
Proposal.  The following specialist advice has been provided pursuant the Canadian 
Environmental Protection Act, Section 36(3) of the Fisheries Act, the Migratory Birds 
Convention Act, and the Species at Risk Act. 
 
North Arrow proposes to conduct an exploration project to evaluate the potential for lithium-
bearing pegmatites in the project area located approximately 245 km east of Kugluktuk.  Project 
activities will include airborne geophysics, prospecting, mapping, and helicopter supported 
diamond drilling for rock samples.  The project is proposed to occur from July 2009 to October 
2014, with field operations expected to occur from March to October of each field season.  A 
crew of approximately 16 people will be employed during project operations.  Project personnel 
will stay at the existing High Lake camp or may set up a 16 person camp at 67 19’ 03”N, - 109 
39’ 07” W.  The camp would include five sleeping tents, cook tent, kitchen, office, core shack, 
outhouse, generator and a fuel cache. 
 
After reviewing the project proposal and supporting documents, Environment Canada (EC) is of 
the opinion that the proposed project is of a type where the potential adverse effects are highly 
predictable and mitigable with known technology. 
 
Recommendations 
 
General 


• The proponent shall not deposit, nor permit the deposit of chemicals, sediment, wastes, or 
fuels associated with the project into any water body. According to the Fisheries Act, 
Section 36 (3), the deposition of deleterious substances of any type in water frequented by 
fish, or in any place under any conditions where the deleterious substance, or any 
deleterious substance that results from the deposit of the deleterious substance, may enter 
any such water, is prohibited. 


Environment Environnement 
Canada          Canada 







• The proponent shall not erect camps or store materials on the surface ice of lakes or 
streams, except that which is for immediate use. 


• All sumps, spill basins, and fuel caches should be located in such a manner as to ensure 
that their contents do not enter any water body, are to backfilled, and re-contoured to 
match the surrounding landscape when they are no longer required. 


• No disturbance of the stream bed or banks of any definable watercourse should be 
permitted. 


• Suitable erosion control measures should be implemented at all stream/lake crossings.  
 
Drilling: 


• Chemical additives or drilling muds used in connection with this drilling program shall 
be disposed of such that they do not enter any waterbody either by surface or ground 
water flows. 


• Regardless of the type of drilling conducted, the following conditions will apply: 
o Drilling wastes from land-based drilling should be disposed of in a sump such 


that they do not enter any body of water. 
o For lake-based winter drilling the proponent may refer to the Interim Guidelines 


for On-Ice drilling. Return water released to the lake must be non-toxic. Return 
water release must not result in an increase in total suspended solids in the waters 
of the lake that exceeds Canadian Council of Ministers of the Environment 
(CCME) Guidelines for the Protection of Freshwater Aquatic Life (i.e. 10 mg/L 
for lakes with background levels under 100 mg/L, or 10% for those above 100 
mg/L). 


o Drilling additives or mud shall not be used in connection with holes drilled 
through lake ice unless they are re-circulated, contained such that they do not 
enter the water, or are demonstrated to be non-toxic. 


• The proponent should be aware that the Canadian Environmental Protection Act lists 
calcium chloride (CaCl) as a toxic substance. The proponent shall therefore ensure that if 
CaCl is used as a drill additive, all sumps containing CaCl are properly constructed and 
located in such a manner as to ensure that the contents will not enter any water body. 


 
Waste Disposal 


• Used absorbent materials, oily or greasy rags, and equipment servicing wastes (such as 
used engine oil, antifreeze, hydraulic oil, lead acid batteries, brake fluid and other 
lubricants) should be safely stored and transported in sealed containers (odour free to 
prevent animal attraction) and safely transported to a facility that is authorized for the 
treatment and disposal of industrial hazardous wastes. 


• Environment Canada recommends the use of an approved incinerator for the disposal of 
combustible camp wastes. The proponent is considering onsite incineration as another 
waste disposal option. EC is developing a Technical Document for Batch Waste 
Incinerators. The technical aspects of the document focus on appropriate incineration 
equipment and best management practices required to achieve the Canada-Wide Standards 
for dioxins/furans and mercury. To assist the board, a draft copy of the executive summary 
of the technical document is provided. The board and the proponent are encouraged to 
contact EC for further information regarding the technical document. 


 
Fuel/Spill Contingency: 


• When storing barreled fuel on location, EC recommends the use of secondary 
containment, such as self-supporting insta-berms, rather than using natural depressions.  
Further, all fuel caches shall be located above the high water mark of any water body and 







in such a manner as to prevent the contents from entering any water body frequented by 
fish. 


• All fuel caches should be inspected and documented on a regular basis.  All fuel 
containers must be properly sealed and stacked in an upright position to prevent the 
possibility of spills and leaks. 


• Decanting of snow or water from the berm area should proceed only if the appropriate 
chemical analysis has determined that the contents will not violate the requirements of 
Section 36.3 of the Fisheries Act, such as contact with hydrocarbons. 


• Fuel containers, including barrels, should be marked with the responsible party’s name, 
product type, and year purchased or filled. 


• The contact information for Environment Canada should be updated on page 7 of the Spill 
Contingency Plan to (867) 669-4730 and (867) 975-4644.   


• EC recommends that all releases of harmful substances, regardless of quantity, are 
immediately reportable where the release: 


• is near or into a water body; 
• is near or into a designated sensitive environment or sensitive wildlife habitat; 
• poses an imminent threat to human health or safety; or 
• poses an imminent threat to a listed species at risk or its critical habitat. 


 
Wildlife: 


• Section 6 (a) of the Migratory Birds Regulations states that no one shall disturb or 
destroy the nests or eggs of migratory birds.  Therefore, Environment Canada 
recommends that all activities in which there is a risk of disturbing or destroying nests or 
eggs be conducted outside the migratory bird breeding season, which extends from 
approximately May 15 to July 31. These dates are approximate, and if nests containing 
eggs or young are encountered outside of these dates the proponent should avoid the area 
until nesting is complete (i.e., the young have left the vicinity of the nest). 


• For activities permitted to occur during the breeding season, Environment Canada 
recommends that the proponent confirm there are no active nests (i.e., nests containing 
eggs or young) in the vicinity of their operations before activities commence.  If active 
nests of migratory birds are discovered, the proponent should halt all activities in the 
nesting area until nesting is completed (i.e., the young have left the vicinity of the nest). 


• Environment Canada recommends that food, domestic wastes, and petroleum-based 
chemicals (e.g., greases, gasoline, glycol-based antifreeze) be made inaccessible to 
wildlife at all times.  Such items can attract predators of migratory birds such as foxes, 
ravens, gulls, and bears.  Although these animals may initially be attracted to the novel 
food sources, they often will also eat eggs and young birds in the area.  These predators 
can have significant negative effects on the local bird populations. 


• Section 5.1 of the Migratory Birds Convention Act prohibits persons from depositing 
substances harmful to migratory birds in waters or areas frequented by migratory birds or 
in a place from which the substance may enter such waters or such an area. 


• In order to reduce aircraft disturbance to migratory birds, Environment Canada 
recommends the following:  


o Fly at times when few birds are present (e.g., early spring, late fall, winter) 
o If flights cannot be scheduled when few birds are present, plan flight paths that 


minimize flights over habitat likely to have birds and maintain a minimum flight 
altitude of 650 m (2100 feet).  


o Minimize flights during periods when birds are particularly sensitive to 
disturbance such as migration, nesting, and moulting. 







o Plan flight paths to avoid known concentrations of birds (e.g., bird colonies, 
moulting areas) by a lateral distance of at least 1.5 km.  If avoidance is not 
possible, maintain a minimum flight altitude of 1100 m (3500 feet) over areas 
where birds are known to concentrate.  


o Avoid the seaward side of seabird colonies and areas used by flocks of migrating 
waterfowl by 3 km.    


o Avoid excessive hovering or circling over areas likely to have birds.  
o Inform pilots of these recommendations and areas known to have birds. 


• The following comments are pursuant to the Species at Risk Act (SARA), which came 
into full effect on June 1, 2004. Section 79 (2) of SARA, states that during an assessment 
of effects of a project, the adverse effects of the project on listed wildlife species and its 
critical habitat must be identified, that measures are taken to avoid or lessen those effects, 
and that the effects need to be monitored.  This section applies to all species listed on 
Schedule 1 of SARA.  However, as a matter of best practice, Environment Canada 
suggests that species on other Schedules of SARA and under consideration for listing on 
SARA, including those designated as at risk by the Committee on the Status of 
Endangered Wildlife in Canada (COSEWIC), be considered during an environmental 
assessment in a similar manner.   


 
Terrestrial  
Species at Risk  1 


 
COSEWIC 
Designation 


 
 
Schedule of SARA 


Government 
Organization with 
Primary Management 
Responsibility 2 


Peregrine Falcon (anatum-
tundrius complex4) 


Special 
Concern 


Schedule 1 
(anatum) 
Schedule 3 
(tundrius) 


Government of Nunavut 


Short-eared Owl Special 
Concern 


Schedule 3 Government of Nunavut 


Barren-ground Caribou 
(Dolphin and Union 
population) 


Special 
Concern 


Pending Government of Nunavut 


Grizzly Bear Special 
Concern 


Pending Government of Nunavut 


Wolverine (Western 
Population) 


Special 
Concern 


Pending Government of Nunavut 


1 The Department of Fisheries and Oceans has responsibility for aquatic species. 
2 Environment Canada has a national role to play in the conservation and recovery of Species at Risk in Canada, as well 
as responsibility for management of birds described in the Migratory Birds Convention Act (MBCA).  Day-to-day 
management of terrestrial species not covered in the MBCA is the responsibility of the Territorial Government.  Thus, 
for species within their responsibility, the Territorial Government is best suited to provide detailed advice and 
information on potential adverse effects, mitigation measures, and monitoring. 
3 The anatum subspecies of Peregrine Falcon is listed on Schedule 1 of SARA as threatened.  The anatum and tundruis 
subspecies of Peregrine Falcon were reassessed by COSEWIC in 2007 and combined into one subpopulation complex.  
This subpopulation complex was assessed by COSEWIC as Special Concern.     
 
Impacts could be disturbance and attraction to operations.   
 
Environment Canada recommends: 


o Species at Risk that could be encountered or affected by the project should be 
identified and any potential adverse effects of the project to the species, its habitat, 
and/or its residence noted.  All direct, indirect, and cumulative effects should be 
considered.  Refer to species status reports and other information on the Species at 
Risk registry at www.sararegistry.gc.ca for information on specific species.  







o If Species at Risk are encountered or affected, the primary mitigation measure should 
be avoidance.  The proponent should avoid contact with or disturbance to each 
species, its habitat and/or its residence. 


o Monitoring should be undertaken by the proponent to determine the effectiveness of 
mitigation and/or identify where further mitigation is required.  As a minimum, this 
monitoring should include recording the locations and dates of any observations of 
Species at Risk, behaviour or actions taken by the animals when project activities 
were encountered, and any actions taken by the proponent to avoid contact or 
disturbance to the species, its habitat, and/or its residence.  This information should 
be submitted to the appropriate regulators and organizations with management 
responsibility for that species, as requested 


o For species primarily managed by the Territorial Government, the Territorial 
Government should be consulted to identify other appropriate mitigation and/or 
monitoring measures to minimize effects to these species from the project. 


o Mitigation and monitoring measures must be taken in a way that is consistent with 
applicable recovery strategies and action/management plans.  


• All mitigation measures identified by the proponent, and the additional measures suggested 
herein, should be strictly adhered to in conducting project activities. This will require 
awareness on the part of the proponents’ representatives (including contractors) conducting 
operations in the field. Environment Canada recommends that all field operations staff be 
made aware of the proponents’ commitments to these mitigation measures and provided with 
appropriate advice / training on how to implement these measures.   


• Implementation of these measures may help to reduce or eliminate some effects of the project 
on migratory birds and Species at Risk, but will not necessarily ensure that the proponent 
remains in compliance with the Migratory Birds Convention Act, Migratory Birds 
Regulations, and the Species at Risk Act. The proponent must ensure they remain in 
compliance during all phases and in all undertakings related to the project. 


 
If there are any changes in the proposed project, EC should be notified, as further review may be 
necessary.  If you have any questions regarding the foregoing please contact Carrie Spavor at 
(867) 975-4631 or via email at carrie.spavor@ec.gc.ca. 
 
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
 Myra Robertson (EA Coordinator, Canadian Wildlife Service, EPO, Yellowknife, NT) 
 








September 10, 2009


Pitquhiliqiyikkut


Department of Culture, Language,
 Elders and Youth


Ministère de la Culture, de la Langue,
 des Aînés et de la Jeunesse


Re: Nunavut Water Board Licence 2BE-TOR Torp Lake Project: Remote camp and exploration activities
(Gordon Clarke North Arrow Minerals Inc.)


Due Date: September 18, 2009


Dear Ms Beaulieu:


At your request, the Department of Culture, Language Elders and Youth (CLEY),
Government of Nunavut, has reviewed the above-noted application. Our recommendations
are limited to CLEY’s mandate and follow. Please note as I was on leave in 2007-2008 and the original
application was not commented on, these comments are not just specific to the amendment.


We recommend the applicant retain the services of a professional consulting archaeologist
to conduct a preliminary heritage resource overview assessment of the project area. At this
stage the overview assessment does not require field work. An assessment is required to
assist the applicant with avoiding recorded and unrecorded heritage resources and project
 planning in relation to heritage resources. A copy of the assessment needs to be provided to CLEY.


The attached is a list of consultants with experience working in Nunavut who may be contacted
to conduct an overview assessment. Other professional archaeological consultants may also be hired.
Sincerely,


original signed


Julie Ross
for  Douglas Stenton
Director, Culture and Heritage
Department of Culture, Language, Elders and Youth


Encl.


Phyllis Beaulieu
Manager of Licensing
Nunavut Water Board
P.O. Box 119
Gjoa Haven, NU  X0B 1J0


ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖃᐅᑕ 310
X0A 0L0  ᑲᓇᑕ


Box 310 Igloolik, NU
X0A 0L0 Canada


C.P. 310 Igloolik, NU
X0A 0L0 Canada


867-934-2046
867-934-2047
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September 18, 2009 
 
Phyllis Beaulieu 
Manager of Licensing 
Nunavut Water Board 
 


    via Email to: licensing@nunavutwaterboard.org 
 
RE: NWB File # 2BE-TOR –– North Arrow Minerals Inc. Torp Lake Project –– 
New Water License Application 
 
Dear Ms. Payette: 
 
The Government of Nunavut, Department of Environment (DOE) has reviewed 
North Arrow Minerals Torp Lake water license application. Based on DOE’s 
mandate under the Environmental Protection Act, we have the following 
comments and recommendations to make. 
 
1. GENERAL 
 
The proponent states in their detailed project description that they will be storing 
water in a 1000 L drum in the dry, however, in the Exploration/Remote Camp 
Supplementary Questionnaire, they state that they will not be storing water on 
site. DOE would like the proponent to clarify this. 
 
2. INCINERATION 
 
The proponent shall make determined efforts to achieve compliance with the 
Canada-wide Standards for Dioxins and Furans and the Canada-wide Standard 
for Mercury Emissions. Efforts should include the implementation of a 
comprehensive waste management strategy (especially waste segregation) that 
is designed to reduce and control the volumes of wastes produced, transported, 
and disposed of. The Waste Management Strategy should consider and include: 


• Purchasing policies that focus on reduced packaging, 
• On-site diversion and segregation programs (i.e. the separation of non-


food waste items suitable for storage and subsequent transport and 
disposal or recycling). 







 
Department of Environment 


2


• If incineration is required, ensure diligent operation and maintenance of 
the incineration device and provide appropriate training to the personnel 
operating and maintaining the incinerator. 


 
Waste wood treated with preservatives such as creosote, pentachlorophenol or 
heavy metal solutions should not be burned.  Additionally, plastics, electrical 
wire, asbestos and building demolition wastes (except clean wood) are wastes 
likely to produce dioxins and furans when burned and should be excluded from 
incineration. Under no circumstance should hazardous wastes be managed 
through burning or incineration. The efforts made to achieve compliance shall be  
reported annually. 
 
3. SPILL CONTINGENCY PLANNING 
 
To prevent spreading in the event of a spill, fuel and chemicals should be stored 
in a natural depression a minimum distance of 90 feet from all streams, 
preferably in an area of low permeability. 
 
4. ABANDONMENT AND RESTORATION 
 
The proponent should include any emergency contact information (fire, police, 
hospital, and clean up specialists). 


 
Hazardous materials stored on-site should be marked so they will be visible 
under all conditions, in all seasons.  This recommendation is intended to help 
prevent possible injuries to camp personnel and/or damage to the containers.  
Unless otherwise specified by the land use inspector or license -issuing agency, 
all hazardous materials should be removed from the site upon completion of the 
activity. All hazardous waste should be accompanied by hazardous waste 
manifests with the appropriate information (Generator number, carrier number, 
and receiver number). 
 
Drill holes should be backfilled or capped at the end of project. The sumps 
should only be used for inert drilling fluids, not any other materials or substances.  
The sumps should be properly closed out at the end of a project.  
 
Drilling additives shall not be used in connection with holes drilled through lake 
ice unless they are re-circulated or contained such that they do not enter the 
water, or demonstrated to be non-toxic. 
 
 


 
GN-DOE thanks the NWB for giving us the opportunity to review and provide 
comments on the North Arrow Mineral’s Torp Lake water license application. 
Please contact us if you have any further questions or comments.  
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Yours sincerely, 
 
Original signed by 
 
Allison Loder 
Environmental Analyst 
Department of Environment 
Government of Nunavut 
PH: (867) 975-7732 
EM: aloder@gov.nu.ca 
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Water Resources Division  
Nunavut Regional Office  
Iqaluit, NU X0A 0H0                   Your File: 2BE-TOR  


    Our File/CIDMS #: 355943  
    
Sept 18, 2009 
 
 
Richard Dwyer 
Licensing Administrator 
Nunavut Water Board 
P.O. Box 119        
Gjoa Haven, NU, X0A 1J0 
 
 
Re:  2BE-TOR – North Arrow Minerals Inc. – Torp Lake Project – New Type ‘B’ 


Water License Application 
 
 
Please be advised that Indian and Northern Affairs Canada (INAC) has completed a 
review of North Arrow Mineral’s application for a Type “B” Water License #2BE-TOR, 
Torp Lake Project located in the West Kitikmeot Region.  
 
INAC has reviewed the following documents: 
 


- Cover letter dated July 7, 2009 
- Water Licence Application Form 
- Exploration/Remote Camp Supplementary Questionnaire 
- Project Summary (English, Inuktitut and Inuinaqtun) 
- Project Description with maps 
- Spill Contingency Plan 
- Water Usage Report Form 
- Wildlife Sightings Report Form 


 
All associated documents related to this license posted on the NWB ftp site under 2BE-
TOR were included in my review (see attached Technical Review Memo).  
 
Should you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
(867) 975-4738 or by email at Andrea.Cull@ainc-ianc.gc.ca 
 
Yours truly, 


 
Original Signed By   
 
Andrea Cull 
Water Management Specialist 
 
Cc: Kevin Buck – Manager of Water Resources, INAC 
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Technical Review Memo 
 
 
To:  Richard Dwyer – Licensing Administrator, Nunavut Water Board 
  Peter Kusugak – Field Operations Manager, INAC 
  Gordon Clark – North Arrow Minerals Inc. 
 
From:  Andrea Cull – Water Management Specialist, INAC 
 
 
 
Re:  2BE-TOR – North Arrow Minerals Inc. – Torp Lake Project – New 


Type ‘B’ Water License Application 
 
 
A new Type ‘B’ water license application was submitted to the Nunavut Water 
Board by Mr. Gordon Clark of North Arrow Minerals Inc. All associated 
documents related to this license posted on the NWB ftp site under 2BE-TOR 
were included in my review. 
 
Project: 
 
File #: 2BE-TOR---- 
Project: Torp Lake Project 
Location: Latitude: 67º20’56”N; Longitude: 109º32’41”W 
Purpose: Remote camp and exploration activities 
Type: “B” 
 
North Arrow is applying for a Type “B” Water License for water use and waste 
disposal associated with a remote camp and exploration activities located 
approximately 245 km East-Southeast of Kugluktuk, Nunavut. 
 
North Arrow intends to carry out exploration work including prospecting, 
mapping, ground geophysics, sampling, diamond drilling and potentially, airborne 
geophysical surveys. There maybe up to 16 people working onsite at any given 
time but typically 3 to 8 people would be present. Exploration work may take 
place year round but is unlikely during spring breakup and fall freezeup. 
 
INAC recommends that the Board impose applicable standard conditions to this 
new water license. In addition the following additional comments/ 
recommendations are provided for your consideration in the licence approval 
process.            
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Recommendations/Comments: 
 
1. Drilling Operations  
 
The Board should impose conditions that require North Arrow to ensure that all 
drill cuttings are placed in drill holes, sumps, or removed from the project area for 
appropriate treatment.  All sumps shall be backfilled and contoured to prevent 
precipitation run-off collection prior to the end of the project field season. 
 
The Board should also require the proponent to provide an operational plan 
detailing how diamond drill return-water will be managed in a manner that will not 
pose a negative impact on the quality of nearby freshwater sources. The Plan 
should consider the use of hot water rather than drill additives to support 
permafrost drilling operations as a means of protecting freshwater quality and/or 
how any use of CaCl2 (Calcium Chloride) will be handled to minimize or prevent 
any adverse effects to water. 
 
Drill additives or mud should not be used with holes drilled through ice unless the 
mud is re-circulated and contained and all drill cuttings are removed from the ice 
surface. 
 
 
2. Waste 
 
a). Camps / Wastewater Disposal  
 
The Board should impose conditions that require North Arrow to ensure that all 
sumps, whether for the disposal of grey water or drilling wastes, be located a 
minimum distance of 31m from any water body and such that there is no adverse 
effects to the quality, quantity and flow of water. Furthermore, all sumps should 
be treated, backfilled and contoured to match the surrounding landscape prior to 
the end of the projects field program. 
 
b). Hazardous Wastes 
 
The Board should impose conditions that Hazardous waste/ waste oil materials 
stored on-site should be clearly labelled so they will be visible under all 
conditions and in all seasons. This recommendation is intended to prevent 
possible damage to the containers. 
 
The proponent should be advised that unless otherwise specified by the Water 
Resources Inspector or NWB, all hazardous materials/ waste oil should be 
removed from the site on a regular basis to prevent the over accumulation of 
these materials. Hazardous waste/ waste oils must be disposed of at an 
approved facility outside of the Territory of Nunavut (no known facilities within 
Nunavut). All transfer of this type of waste must be in accordance with the GN 
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“Guideline for General Management of Hazardous Waste - January, 2002”. In 
addition hazardous wastes should be stored within a lined secondary 
containment structure to prevent any off site impacts (other secured structures 
would also be acceptable). 
 
INAC recommends that the proponent be required to submit copies of all 
manifest forms related to the transport of hazardous waste/ waste oil as part of 
the Annual Report for this site. 
 
c). Empty Barrel/ Fuel Drums 
 
INAC recommends that all empty barrels or fuel drums should be removed from 
the site by the end of each field season up to August 2014 – expiry date of water 
licence. The proponent should submit if applicable copies of all manifest forms 
related to the transport of hazardous waste/ waste oil as part of the Annual 
Report for this site. 
 
d). No Open Burning 
 
INAC recommends that there should be no open burning of plastics, wood 
treated with preservatives, electrical wire, Styrofoam, asbestos or painted wood. 
This is to prevent the deposition of waste materials from incomplete combustion 
and/or leachate from contaminated ash residues from impacting any surrounding 
waters. 
 
e). Incineration  
 
According to the “Government of Nunavut in Conjunction with Environment 
Canada” this camp falls under a medium camp size (10 to 50 people). If the 
proponent is to dispose of waste onsite then the Board should advise the 
proponent to apply appropriate technologies to ensure complete combustion of 
wastes, and the use of a dual chamber, forced-air incinerator is recommended. 
The proponent shall make determined efforts to achieve compliance with the 
Canada-Wide Standards for Dioxins and Furans and the Canada-Wide Standard 
for Mercury Emissions. Efforts should include the implementation of a 
comprehensive waste management strategy (especially waste segregation) that 
is designed to reduce and control the volumes of wastes produced, transported, 
and disposed of. 
 
f). Non-Hazardous/ Non-Combustible 
 
INAC recommends that the Board impose conditions that require North Arrow to 
ensure that non-hazardous and non-combustible wastes should be backhauled 
to an approved facility off site. 
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3. Spill Contingency Plan 
 
The Board should require that the Spill Contingency Plan state that all fuel 
caches will be located a minimum distance of 31m from any water body and such 
that there is no adverse effects to the quality, quantity and flow of water. Further, 
secondary containment, such as a self-supporting berm, is recommended when 
storing barrels containing fuel onsite. 
 
The Response Action Section of the Spill Contingency Plan should make 
reference to the Nunavut Spill Report Line and include a copy of the Nunavut 
Spill Report Form. This form can be obtained from the Nunavut Water Board 
public registry at http://www.nunavutwaterboard.org. Please note that the 24-hour 
Spill Report Line telephone number is (867) 920-8130 and facsimile number is 
(867) 873-6924. Furthermore, INAC requests the proponent report all spills to 
Peter Kusugak, INAC Manager of Field Operations, phone: 867-975-4295, fax 
867 975-6445 as well as the Nunavut Spill Report Line. 
 
 
Cc. Kevin Buck, Manager of Water Resources – INAC 
 







Dave
 
 
   Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

 
David Hohnstein, C.E.T.
Director Technical Services
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